
Agenda 

Tolland Green Historic District Commission  
21 Tolland Green, Tolland, Connecticut  

Wednesday, November 15, 2023 at 7:00 p.m., via Zoom  

Remote Participation Only 
 

 

Public Hearing 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call  

3. Continuation: Consideration of Application for a COA at 45 Tolland Green to install low-

profile solar energy collection panels to the south-facing roofs on the main church and 

daycare buildings (on the rear property of church). Panels are to be black and non-

reflective. 

4. Neighbor comments, both for and against  

5. Close of Public Hearing 

 

Regular Meeting 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Consideration of the COA at 45 Tolland Green by the Commission, and vote thereon 

3. Old Business  

3.1 Discuss proposed sidewalks on the Tolland Green 

4. Miscellaneous 

4.1 Discuss Officers and terms   

5. Approval of Minutes from October 18, 2023 

6. Adjournment 

 

To View Meeting Materials:  

See https://www.tolland.org/historic-district-commission/pages/remote-meeting-packets-audio-

recordings 

 

To Join Zoom Meeting: 
Either click:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82427389353?pwd=4tH3L8upJvI5x2P4Ux6R3694adUL5a.1 

 

One tap mobile:  
+16468769923,,82427389353#,,,,*11152023# 

Or call: 1-646-876-9923 and input: 824 2738 9353 

Meeting ID: 824 2738 9353 

Passcode: 11152023 
  

1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Hearing 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Materials 

(received since 

last meeting)  

33



Date:  10/27/2023 

 

To:  Tolland Historical District Commission 

 

RE:  A response to the Historic District Commission’s request to remove solar panels from the roof of the 

main church at the October 18th, 2023 meeting concerning the United Congregational Church of 

Tolland’s (UCCT) application for COA to install Solar Energy Collection Panels on the UCCT property at 45 

Tolland Green. 

We have heard your concern and we are working with our installation company to do everything 

possible to meet the redesign recommendations while still maintaining our electric generation 

requirements.   

The following are the direct steps that UCCT and AEC Solar have taken in an attempt to address the 

concerns of the Tolland Historic District Commission (THDC): 

-- We have moved as many panels as possible from the main UCCT roof to the Barbara Phelps building 

and other roofs on the main church. We believe that the visual impact of the panels left on the main 

church roof is minimal during the winter and even less so when the trees have full leaves.  The panels 

included in the current design are the minimum needed to generate adequate energy to make this 

project viable to Eversource and for UCCT to qualify to receive tariffs from Eversource (for the electricity 

sent back out to the local grid and qualify for the 30% rebate back to the church).   

--The solar panels unable to be moved from the main roof of the church in the updated design are 

installed from the rear of the south facing roof forward ending at the Miller Room addition (which is the 

perpendicular outcropping nearest the road, Rte. 195).  Please see the updated panel footprint included 

with this communication.  By placing the panels as far back on the main roof as possible, the current 

configuration has no panels extending beyond the tree in the church’s side yard. In the new design 

diagrams provided by AEC we are using the rear (west) facing roofs and other roof surfaces on the main 

church whose surfaces are not visible from the street.  We are also moving some panels off of the main 

church roof to one of the south facing roofs of the Phelps Building (Daycare).  This will require trenching 

the array power cable from the Phelps building to the main church and connecting to one of the solar 

panel arrays on the main UCCT building.  Eversource can credit that energy production to the main 

church via the main church electric meter.  Both the main UCCT building, and the Phelps building have 

their own separate electrical meters and accounts with Eversource.  Eversource policy is that it can only 

measure and credit energy production from the meter that the energy is traveling through to determine 

the credits. 

-- The Phelps building solar energy redesigned (after 10/18/2023) plan for producing electricity will come 

from panels on the remaining space on the south facing roof and by moving other panels to the west 

facing Daycare building roof.   

Taking into consideration the Town of Tolland zoning and Tolland Fire codes regulating rooftop solar 

installations and emergency access to roofs in the event of a fire, this revised plan has maximized all the 

34



available surface area on both buildings, thus limiting the number of solar panels on the main church 

roof. 

--In response to questions at the October 18, 2023 meeting we looked into some other proposed 

options.   

Building a free standing pedestal or ground mounted solar panel array on the grassy area 

between the church parking lot and the woods in the rear of the church property.  This is not feasible for 

2 reasons.  First, the grassy area is used as a playground for the daycare children thus it is inappropriate 

to place electrical producing equipment near children.   Second, the woods will significantly reduce the 

solar light exposure to only mornings and midday before being shaded by the trees to the west in the 

afternoon.  

--Constructing a church parking lot carport where panels could be moved from the main UCCT building 

roof to the carport roof.  Unfortunately this suggestion, is cost prohibitive for the church (please see the 

attached email thread from AEC regarding the cost of constructing such a structure).  In addition, we 

believe this structure would detract from the charm of the Green and our property. 

--Using geothermal. In order to maintain temperature only, running this system 24/7 would be using 

more electricity than the church currently does now (in order to pump the water to and from the ground 

and then circulate air through the buildings). There is no central air system in either the church building 

or the Daycare and the current systems would have to be modified to one central air system.  Creating a 

central air system was explored during the Covid 19 outbreak to improve air quality.  This would have 

cost $50,000 (in 2021 cost estimates), for just the sanctuary, on top of the other costs of installing 

geothermal.   

--Installing EV Charging Stations. We believe this would be a security risk for UCCT and the residents of 

the Historic District as it would be open to the public 365/24/7.  It would not be possible to monitor the 

stations at all times and would also significantly increase the price of the whole project. 

In closing, as members of the Historic District, we enjoy Tolland’s rural New England charm and 

architectural appeal. This was taken into consideration for our initial presentation on October 18, 2023.  

We sent a letter to all the residents of the Green explaining what our plans were and asking for their 

support and thoughts.  One letter was returned unopened due to an invalid address.  UCCT received a 

total of 10 letters and emails supporting our plan, all of which 8 were submitted for the October 18th 

meeting, two of the 10 letters were received post 10/18/2023.  Not one received expressed any 

concerns.  The letters referenced of concerns at our initial meeting came from 2018.  

Today, rooftop solar panels are a very common sight.  They are much less reflective, and generally not 

seen as a detraction, as they may have been viewed in the past.  Though minimally visible from the 

Green, we believe that the panels, make a statement that UCCT takes seriously our commitment to 

caring for the environment—something we believe is asked of us, in the Bible, as a way of living out our 

faith in the world.  In addition, with an aging congregation, and seeking to remain financially solvent in 

the future so that we can continue to support our community, we believe it is imperative that we reduce 

our expenses and attract new and younger members.  We believe the addition of these panels meets all 

of those objectives. 

35



Thank you for your time and consideration.  We look forward to talking with you further at our meeting 

on November 15, 2023. 

 

Sincerely,  

Bail Brenn, UCCT Moderator 

36



Solar Power Project 

for the UCCT Tolland Green Learning Center 

Barbara Phelps Building 

 

Opportunity 

Earthlight Power LLC of Ellington Connecticut is offering a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with UCCT 

to install a 23kW solar system on the roof of the Barbara Phelps building in return for a 20-year lease to 

purchase power from them at $0.10 k/Whr. With this arrangement, UCCT has the opportunity to 

contribute to energy conservation at no cost to UCCT with a savings potential of around $2000/yr for 

electricity for the building, and likely increased savings over the next 25 years.  

Specifics of the Business Case 

The TGLC typically consumes 25,000 kWhr/year of power, which has been steady over at least the last 

three years. The cost for power has ranged between $0.17-$0.24 kWhr and most recently the cost has 

been $0.173 kWhr. This includes transmission/distribution/service charges of around $0.02/kWhr. The 

system is eligible for a Zero-Emissions Renewable Energy Credit (ZREC) from the State of Connecticut 

paying $0.10307/kWhr to offset power generation cost for 15 years. The PPA requires UCCT to sign the 

ZREC over to Earthlight LLC and in return Earthlight will install and maintain the system for 20 years 

and charge UCCT a fixed power cost of $0.10 kWhr for 20 years. This provides a cost savings to UCCT of 

about $0.08 kWhr which will likely escalate over the 20-year period.  

The table below shows the savings projected by Earthlight assuming about a 3%/yr increase in power 

cost and a 0.25%/yr decrease in panel power generation efficiency. This estimate indicates a total 

savings to UCCT of $2,055 in year 1, $2,622 in year 10, and $3,436 in year 20, for a cumulative savings 

of $53,796 after 20 years. 

 

 

 

After the 20 year lease UCCT will own the system.  The PPA includes an option for UCCT to purchase 

the system for $35,000 after seven years and re-assume the ZREC for the remaining 8 years, potentially 

providing even more savings. 

37



Description of the System 

Earthlight’s proposal is to install 64 SunPower solar panels on the two South facing roofs on the East 

end of the BP building, and on the West facing roof at the West end of the building.  Panels will not be 

installed in-line with the West entrance to avoid the risk of snow/ice falling near the entrance door. 

 

Earthlight uses U.S. made SunPower X-series commercial grade panels which are high-end components 

that produce 20% more power over the life of the panel than other panels and are more durable 

because of the copper back-panel design. Collection efficiency drops about 0.25%/yr, also better than 

many other panels. They carry a 25 year warranty and should be economically viable for 30-40 years. 

Two inverters will be installed on the North wall of the building near the existing electrical meters. The 

system includes modern web-remote sensing allowing Earthlight to monitor system performance. 

Earthlight will cover all operating costs and maintenance for the system for the 20 year lease. 

Risks 

Roof issues/repairs  -  Premium 50-year shingles were installed on the BP building in 2011 and should 

have nearly 40 years of remaining life. Solar panels generally extend the life of the shingles by blocking 

sun light. We discussed the project with Dave Welch and he believes all issues with the shingled part of 

the roof have been fixed and we should not have to do anything with that roof for 40 years. It would 

not make sense to re-architect the roof in his view. In the past leaks occurred related to the rubber-

roof section in the valleys. However, since installing heating tapes no issues with the valley in the roof 

have occurred recently. The panel locations are only on the shingled roof and do not prevent access to 

the valley of the roof if new leaks were to occur again. Dave confirmed that he sees no issue with 

installing the system. In the unlikely event of a major issue with the roof, the system can be 

disassembled and removed. Estimated cost to remove and reinstall the system is about $5,000-$8,000 

(4 man crew for 2 days), which is less than five years savings, so as long as this does not occur multiple 

times during the life of the system a net savings would still exist. 

System reliability  -  Earthlight provides all maintenance of the system for the 20 years. Earthlight 

monitors the output and will decide if repairs are needed at their cost if performance drops. The main 

risk would be if tree limbs fall on and damage the system. Since there are no trees close to the BP 

building, this risk appears to be very low and may be covered by UCCTs insurance. 

System performance  -  The ZREC program is based upon the system providing enough power to cover 

the usage of the BP building on an annual basis. If the usage is higher than the power generation, then 

Eversource would charge for the difference at their normal rate.  This would decrease our cost savings. 

38



For example, if our usage is 20% over the system production, the annual additional cost would be on 

the order of $900 (25,000*0.2*0.18). Thus, it will be important for UCCT to make sure the usage stays 

under about 25,000 kWhr. There are several conservation measures that can be employed (such as LED 

lighting) to keep usage down, so this risk appears manageable but will need to be monitored. Similarly, 

if the system under-produces in a given year and usage exceeds production, we would pay the 

difference at Eversource rates. The system was sized using zipcode specific data that takes several 

years worth of weather data into account (number of cloudy days, amount of snow etc.). So again, if 

the system produces 20% less power one year (lots of cloudy days :<) and usage is normal the 

additional cost could be of the order of the $900/yr. The system generation efficiency should drop by 

less than 5% over the 20 years, so the main risk is in terms of the weather, which is not likely to vary by 

greater that 10%. Finally, the PPA has a fixed rate for the power generated so if usage is below 

production, we still pay for the power produced and we would not get a benefit for reduced usage. 

This could be a factor if the TGLC were closed and usage was substantially reduced, we would not get a 

savings. In summary, it seems reasonable to assume that 10% variations in power generated or excess 

usage could occur which would reduce our annual savings by less than 25% that year, but should not 

completely remove the cost savings provided by the system.  

Fire Department  -  There was concern expressed about whether an energized solar system prevents 

the fire department from responding to a fire. We spoke to the Tolland Fire Marshall and he confirmed 

that an external power shut off will be installed but the panels still carry a charge in them so they don't 

break the panels to vent the roof.  Instead they will vent out the side of the building. He said they 

absolutely will fight the fire, it just makes venting a little trickier.  He was generally in favor of installing 

such a solar system if beneficial to UCCT.  

Recycling  -  Wide-spread use of solar panels is a relatively recent development and recycling 

constraints/costs are not clear. Although it is often advertised that some toxic materials are used in 

manufacturing the panels, there are no significant toxic materials in the finished panels and we are told 

there is currently no disposal costs. Used panels are often donated to under-developed areas. If the 

system is disposed of in 30 years or so it is not clear what the disposal/recycling cost would be.  

Assuming it is less than $50/panel, this would be less than the last years savings.  

Data security  -  Earthlight will be the only organization able to access system performance and will 

report results to UCCT. All data is in-house processed. The PPA includes a condition preventing them 

from using any data restricted by UCCT.  The risk/liability associated with the power generation/usage 

information is very low. 

Environmental Impact 

The advertised environmental benefit of solar is impressive. The amount of clean energy produced by 

this project in a year compared to conventional utilities would be equivalent to driving over one million 

fewer miles in your car, growing over  10,000 tree seedlings for ten years, taking 100 passenger cars off 

the road for a year. 

 

39



Company Reputation 

Earthlight LLC is a locally owned company licensed in CT, MA, RI, ME, VT, NH, PA and OR. They are 

certified by the North American Board of Certified Energy Practitioners (NABCEP) and is accredited 

with the Better Business Bureau (BBB). They have completed projects with Trinity Church, Swiss 

Cleaners and others locally. They also do energy audits and HVAC.  

 

Going-Forward Schedule 

The following are the next steps to complete the project. It is important to try to get the system 

installed and on-line by the April-May time-frame to take advantage of the high solar months of the 

summer.  

 

 Receive finalized ZREC contract between Eversource and UCCT  -  next week or so 

 UCCT to sign PPA with Earthlight LLC to buy power 

 Engineering assessment of roof –  32 lb/ft2 capability, no structural issues – Earthlight 

 Acquire building and utility permits from the Town of Tolland – Earthlight  

 UCCT to sign ZREC over to Earthlight LLC 

 Schedule installation 

 Installation (approximately 2 days) 

 Hook-up system and bring on line 

 Inspection by Tolland Building Inspector 

 

 

 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Received 

Correspondence   

54



1

Laura Smith

From: Jim Paquin
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:58 AM
To: Laura Smith
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL]HDC Minutes October 2023

 
 
James Paquin  
Chief Building Official 
Town of Tolland, CT 
(860) 871‐3601 
 
**Please note the change in my email address to: Jpaquin@tollandct.gov 
 
From: Fred Day‐Lewis < >  
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:51 AM 
To: Jim Paquin <jpaquin@Tollandct.gov>; Jodie Coleman‐Marzialo < > 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]HDC Minutes October 2023 

 
Dear HD Commissioners, 
 
I was just reading the posted draft minutes from the October meeting. I have several suggestions for revisions 
and corrections to the draft based on my recollection and review of the audio record. 
 
1. In the October HDC meeting, one of the commissioners brought up opposition to an application from the 
UCCT that the HDC considered and denied in 2018. The draft minutes summarize in detail several letters of 
opposition to this previous application. To raise former opposition to a prior case here is inappropriate. Those 
letters were not written in regard to the case before you now, which involves a different panel layout and type of 
panels; furthermore, solar is now installed on at least three houses within the HDC and has grown in acceptance 
in the past 5 years, as people have figured out it's not a fire risk, reflective, etc., which were concerns in the 
2018 letters. The HDC should not assume that opposition to a case 5 years ago equates to opposition to the 
application before you. Indeed, perhaps the letter writers did not write this time because they have changed 
their opinion about solar or have no issue with the proposed plan. Inclusion of these letters, and the fact that a 
commissioner brought them up, appear as a bias on the part of the HDC. This is a bad look for the Commission.
 
2. Although the HDC received no letters of opposition to the current application ahead of the October meeting, 
it received numerous letters of support. As of the October meeting, your only input from the community--and 
most from neighbors--were favorable. You do not summarize or even mention these letters in the minutes. 
Again, this looks like bias on the part of the HDC.  
 
3. The summaries of people speaking in opposition (now or 5 years ago) are long and lay out full arguments, 
whereas the summaries of statements in favor are terse and less impactful. Take for example, the 
characterization of my statement in favor of the application as essentially 'solar is good.' Rather, I spoke to the 
importance of the UCCT's role in the history of Tolland for 300 years, and how if the HDC aims to preserve 
history it should work to preserve the church and keep it here on the Green. The most important historical value 
here is the church, and I don’t mean the building. The UCCT community, its work here over 3 centuries, and its 

55



2

ongoing contributions are historical resources that should be preserved. The UCCT hosts the food share, AA, 
boy scouts, concerts, and other support groups.  
 
To anyone listening to the audio recording, this again would appear as commissioner bias against the 
application or the applicant.  
 
4. I suspect he doesn't care, but I suggest replacing 'Mr. Jeff Gallagher' with "Rev. Dr. Jeff Gallagher."  

Thank you. 
 
V/r, 
Dr. Fred Day-Lewis 
 

56



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Meeting 

57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5 

58



MINUTES  

TOLLAND GREEN HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

Wednesday, October 18, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

REMOTE MEETING 

 

 

Regular Meeting 

  

1. Call to Order of Public Hearing at 7:05 pm by Chair. 

 

2.  Roll Call  

Commissioners: Jodie Coleman-Marzialo, Chair, Ann Deegan, substitute clerk, Celeste 

Senechal, alternates: Mike McGee, John Hughes 

Katie Murray, town council liaison 

U 

3. Reading of Public Notice as it appears in the Journal Inquirer by the Chair.   

4. Consideration of Application for a COA at 63 Tolland Green for replacement windows 

on the front and sides of the home (13 total) 

4.1 Mr. Day-Lewis, homeowner explained that there is presently water damage and rot in 

these windows.  As they are very old there is also the possibility of the presence of lead.  

Presently the storms are bolted as inner window that is not only a violation of code but 

prevents ventilation and egress. 

4.2 The contractor, Mr. Ted Drinkuth of 95 Hillcrest Dr. in Storrs stated that the windows 

would be of wood with a wood composite finish.  They would cover the same square 

footage and have the save grill pattern.  They are Andersen Woodwright 400 series.  The 

sills would be repaired in kind. 

5. Neighbor Comments:  none 

6. Consideration of the COA at 45 Tolland Green to install low profile solar energy 

collection panels to the south facing roofs in the main church and day care buildings (on 

the rear property of the church).  These panels are to be black and non-reflective.   

6.1 Ms. Cindy Mickune from AEC solar was present.  She explained that the panels 

would be flush with the roof with only a space of about 1.5 inches.  The gentleman from 

the church explained that this was why he called these solar panels low profile in the 

application for the COA.  There was a question as to the exact number of panels however 

Ms Mickune explained that the area covered would remain the same with about 70 panels 

on the main church roof.  There would probably be 15 rows by 14 wide, which would 

cover 86.3 ft. X 17.1 ft, on the main church.  The church is buying the panels outright, 

The number of panels was needed to match the usage that is approximately 51,040 kWh 

per year.  These panels would produce about 51,810 kWh per year.   

6.2 Discussion: 

Ms. Marzialo questioned that the TGHDC is responsible for protecting and preserving the 

character and integrity of the Historic District. The Connecticut General Statures Section 

59



7-147F further stipulates that a COA for any exterior feature designed for the utilization 

of renewable resources shall not be denied unless the commission concludes that the 

system cannot be installed without substantially impairing the historic character and 

appearance of the district.  However the commission may include stipulations requiring 

design modifications and limitations on the location of the feature, which do not 

significantly impair its effectiveness.   

Ms. Marzialo question whether some of the panels from the main church could be placed 

on the porch area of the daycare center so as to be less visible from the street. It was 

explained that each building would have separate meters and wires to provide different 

electrical usages.   

Ms. Senechal suggested panels on a freestanding carport-like construction in the parking 

lot.  The church said that this would be too costly. 

Mr. Hughes thought the idea of solar panels is a good idea as a sign of progress and 

adapting to present times.   

The church explained that they would be saving between 17 and 20 thousand dollars plus 

tariffs from Eversource.  They feel this is important to the survival of the church.   

Ms. Senechal asked if the church had considered geothermal and was told this was too 

expensive.   

Ms. Deegan read from the TGHDC minutes of the April 25, 2018, when the UCCT 

previously applied for a COA for solar panels that: 

1. Mark and Denise Marti of 704 Tolland Stage Road felt that a 

compromise using solar shingles on the south and panels on the west was a good idea. 

Earthlite were not in favor of this as panels are far more efficient. The panels offer about 

22% efficiency whereas the shingles only 15%. The south facing according to Mr. 

Schneider would definitely offer the most efficiency at about 40%. 

2. Mariah Bumps of 25 Tolland Green felt that placing solar panels on the South roof is 

an issue as it is visible from the street. 

3. Dave Barnas of 31 Tolland Green had done some research on google and on one 

website found that according to the Secretary of the Interior if there is a negative impact 

on a historical area, a project is not acceptable. 

4. Holly Barnas of 31 Tolland Green stated that solar panels would 

reflect right into their kitchen because of the way their house is built. 

She stated that Tolland is a rural town with a unique character, 

that needs to be preserved. She felt that we should not compromise the Green, which 

would lower property values. She was vehemently opposed to the project. 

5. Rod Hurtuk of 76 Tolland Green does not believe the panels can be installed without 

changing the character of the Historic District and felt that installing solar panels would 

be a poor precedent to set. 

6. Alona Croteau of 8 Cider Mill Road mentioned her concerns about 

the fire safety of solar panels especially in close proximity to the old building (the 

church). Jeff Lovett stated that Rev. Jeff Gallagher, the minister of UCCT had discussed 

this issue with Tolland Fire Chief Littell and were assured that this was not a danger. 

60



 

Ms. Deegan stated that it is not certain that the above neighbors continue to feel this way.   

Ms. Marizalo felt the way the panels are arranged on the roof is detrimental to the 

TGHDC due to the visibility.  She suggested that maybe the solar company could try 

shifting some of the panels off the main roof and get a more realistic picture of what they 

might look like.  They could then come back to the November 15, 2023 meeting, which is 

day 48 well within the 65-day limit. 

 

7.  Neighbor comments:   

Mr. Fred Day-Lewis 63 Tolland Green spoke in favor of the solar panels stating the 

importance of the ecological benefits of solar. 

Mr. Jeff Gallagher, pastor of the UCCT stated the church is an asset to the community.  

He said that solar is an environmental need and the solar panels are strategic to offer the 

funding needed to keep staffing and fund ministries.   

Motion to close the public hearing for the COA for the windows at 63 Tolland Green and 

table the public hearing for 45 Tolland Green for solar panels.  

By: C. Senechal, 2nd A. Deegan   Vote: unanimous 

The COA for 45 Tolland Green for the solar panels is tabled until the November 15, 2023 

TGHDC meeting.  

  

The Regular meeting was called to order at 8:13. 

1. Roll Call:  Same as above. 

2. Motion to accept the Application for a COA at 63 Tolland Green to replace 13 

windows on the front and sides of the home by C. Senechal, 2nd A. Deegan  

Vote unanimous 

3. Motion to table the Application for the COA on 45 Tolland Green for the solar panels 

until the November 15, 2023 TGHDC meeting.  By C. Senechal 2nd A. Deegan   Vote: 

unanimous 

 4.  Old Business 

4.1 Ms. Marzialo stated that the project for the sidewalk on the Green is on hold at the 

moment due to the lawsuit being brought against the town on this issue.   

Mr. John Hughes questioned whether the individuals who have brought the lawsuit 

should be excluded from further discussions concerning the sidewalks, as a member of 

the Commission is involved in the lawsuit.   

61



Ann suggested possibly they only recuse themselves from any voting in the future as the 

members of the committee who are also members of the UCCT church have done when 

there is a vote concerning the church.   

5.   Motion to approve the dates for the TGHDC meetings for 2024.  By C. Senechal, 2nd 

A. Deegan vote unanimous. 

5.1 Ms. Marzialo stated that Mr. Hurtuk would be retiring from the Commission so we 

will be looking for a new vice chairperson.    This will be discussed further at the next 

commission meeting in November.   

5.2 Katie Murray, liaison to the town council stated that the engineers’ report on the jail 

has been completed and is being reviewed by the Town Council.  It was wondered 

whether ARPA funds would be used for these improvements.   

5.3 There was a brief discussion on ADA access on the steep slope backfield at the high 

school for such activities such as Celebrate Tolland.   

6.  Motion to approve the minutes of the September 20, 2023 minutes after they are 

amended to include C. Senechal in the roll call as she did attend and made motions.  By 

C. Seneshal, 2nd A. Deegan  vote unanimous 

7. Motion to adjourn at 8:32 by C. Senechal, 2nd A. Deegan   vote unanimous 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ann Deegan, Substitute Clerk  

 

 

 

62


	2023-11-15 Meeting Packet
	Day-Lewis Email
	Received Correspondence



